
 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

MARSHALL DIVISION 

 

NORTHSTAR SYSTEMS LLC, 

 

Plaintiff, 

 

v. 

 

BEST BUY CO., INC.,  

 

Defendant. 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

 

 

Case No.  

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

 Plaintiff NorthStar Systems LLC (“NorthStar” or “Plaintiff”) for its Complaint against 

Defendant Best Buy Co., Inc. (“Best Buy” or “Defendant”) alleges as follows:  

THE PARTIES 

1. NorthStar is a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of 

the State of Texas, with its principal place of business located at 104 E. Houston Street, Marshall, 

Texas 75670.  

2. Upon information and belief, Defendant Best Buy Co., Inc. is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of Delaware, with a regular and established place of business 

in this judicial district, located 2800 N Central Expy, Plano, TX 75074.  Upon information and 

belief, Best Buy does business in Texas and in the Eastern District of Texas, directly or through 

intermediaries.   
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JURISDICTION 

3. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the United 

States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1, et seq.  This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1331 and 1338(a).  

4. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant.  Defendant regularly conducts 

business and has committed acts of patent infringement in this Judicial District, the State of Texas, 

and elsewhere in the United States.  

5. Venue is proper in this Judicial District as to Defendant Best Buy pursuant to 

1400(b).  Best Buy has a regular and established place of business in this Judicial District, 

including in Collin County, and is deemed to reside in this Judicial District.  On information and 

belief, Best Buy has committed acts of infringement in this Judicial District, and/or has purposely 

transacted business involving the accused devices in this Judicial District including providing sales 

and technical support for the products accused of infringement herein.   

6. Defendant is subject to this Court’s jurisdiction pursuant to due process and/or the 

Texas Long Arm Statute due at least to its substantial business in this State and Judicial District, 

including (a) at least part of its past infringing activities, (b) regularly doing or soliciting business 

in Texas, and/or (c) engaging in persistent conduct and/or deriving substantial revenue from goods 

and services provided to customers in Texas.  

PATENTS-IN-SUIT 

7. On September 2, 2003, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and 

legally issued U.S. Patent No. 6,614,349 (the “’349”) entitled “Facility and Method for Tracking 

Physical Assets”.  A true and correct copy of the ’349 Patent is available at: 

http://pdfpiw.uspto.gov/.piw?PageNum=0&docid=6614349. 
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8. On March 28, 2017, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and legally 

issued U.S. Patent No. 9,609,283 (the “’283 Patent”) entitled “Mobile Unit Communication Via A 

Network”.  A true and correct copy of the ’283 Patent is available at: 

http://pdfpiw.uspto.gov/.piw?PageNum=0&docid=9609283.  

9. On December 18, 2012, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and 

legally issued U.S. Patent No. 8,335,254 (the “’254 Patent”) entitled “Advertisements Over a 

Network”.  A true and correct copy of the ’254 Patent is available at: 

http://pdfpiw.uspto.gov/.piw?PageNum=0&docid=8335254. 

10. NorthStar is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title, and interest in the ’349 

Patent, the ’283 Patent, and the ’254 Patent (the “Patents-in-Suit”) and holds the exclusive right to 

take all actions necessary to enforce its rights to the Patents-in-Suit, including the filing of this 

patent infringement lawsuit.  NorthStar also has the right to recover all damages for past 

infringement of the Patents-in-Suit and to seek injunctive relief as appropriate under the law.   

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

11. The Patents-In-Suit generally disclose technology for monitoring object.  

12. The ’349 Patent generally discloses systems and methods that employ monitoring 

and tracking inventory through the use of wireless communication system.  The technology 

described in the ’349 Patent was developed by Rod L. Proctor and Andrew J. Rimkus.  By way of 

example, this technology is implemented today in asset tracking systems deployed throughout the 

supply chain (e.g., warehousing, logistics, and retail spaces). 

13. The ’283 Patent generally discloses a network system for monitoring and 

transmitting information regarding remote objects.   The technology described in the ’283 Patent 

was developed by Dennis Sunga Fernandez and Irene Hu Fernandez.  By way of example, this 
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technology is implemented today in asset tracking systems deployed throughout the supply chain 

(e.g., warehousing, logistics, and retail spaces). 

14. The ’254 Patent generally discloses a method for monitoring consumers to transmit 

an unsolicited advertisement.   The technology described in the ’254 Patent was developed by 

Dennis Sunga Fernandez and Irene Hu Fernandez.  By way of example, this technology is 

implemented today in methods used by Best Buy’s digital marketing program and retail spaces.   

15. Upon information and belief, Best Buy uses Warehouse Management Systems 

(“WMS”) and the Exacta Warehouse Execution Systems (“WES”) in its Regional Distribution 

Centers and Metro E-Commerce Centers around the United States. 

1 

2 

 
1https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TAAFAv9zpoc  
2 Id.  
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16. Upon information and belief, the above systems use a web based system, which 

uses robotics.  These robotic systems employ a method used to locate specific bins and deliver 

them to workstations, as depicted below:  

3 

4 

 
3 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ecftHVqxRpg.  
4 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TAAFAv9zpoc. 
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5 Id. 
6 Id.  
7 Id.  
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17. Upon information and belief, Best Buy uses visual recognition, including, but not 

limited to, image recognition and/or light recognition within its supply chain and storage facilities, 

including, but not limited to, the use of Exacta WES, which include automated order picking 

systems, such as robotic order picking8 and other visual recognition solutions. 

18. Best Buy has infringed and is continuing to infringe the ’283 Patent by making, 

offering to sell, selling, importing, and/or using inventory tracking and loss prevention system in 

its stores and throughout its supply chain, such as the Exacta WES supply chain solution and 

inventory management system.  

19. Best Buy infringed the ’349 the Patent by making, offering to sell, selling, 

importing, and/or using asset tracking systems methods deployed throughout the supply chain 

(e.g., warehousing, logistics, and retail spaces).  

20. Best Buy infringed the ’254 the Patent by making, offering to sell, selling, 

importing, and/or using methods used by Best Buy’s digital marketing program and retail spaces.   

COUNT I 

(Infringement of the ’254 Patent) 

 

21. Paragraphs 1 through 20 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

22. NorthStar has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendant to make, use, offer 

for sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’254 Patent. 

23. Defendant directly infringed the ’254 Patent, either literally or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, using, offering 

 
8https://www.bastiansolutions.com/solutions/technology/picking/#:~:text= 

Automated%20order%20picking%20systems%20%E2%80%93%20voice,to%20person%20pick

ing%20and%20more.  
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to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each and every 

limitation of one or more claims of the ’254 Patent.  Such products include asset tracking systems.  

24. For example, Defendant directly infringed at least claim 1 of the ’254 Patent by 

making, offering to sell, selling, importing, and/or using in the United States inventory tracking 

and loss prevention system in its stores and throughout its supply chain.  

25. The process implemented by Defendant includes: monitoring a consumer via a 

wireless network coupled to a detector network, wherein a detector in the detector network detects 

an attribute associated with the consumer.  The process implemented by Defendant extrapolates a 

predicted future location of the consumer based on last stored information associated with the 

consumer in order to obtain an observation range of the detector network into which the consumer 

is expected to be moving in the future and transmits, in response to the attribute and the 

extrapolating the predicted future location, an unsolicited advertisement to the consumer, wherein 

the unsolicited advertisement is a future advertisement associated with a vendor associated with 

the observation range into which the consumer is expected to be moving in the future.  An example 

of such directed advertisement is depicted below: 
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26. Defendant directly infringed one or more claims of the ’254, either literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, by making, using, offering to sell, selling and/or importing into the 

United States products or systems that include infringing technology.   

27. NorthStar has suffered damages as a result of Defendant’s direct infringement of 

the ’254 Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

 

COUNT II 

(Infringement of the ’283 Patent) 

 

28. Paragraphs 1 through 20 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

29. NorthStar has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendant to make, use, offer 

for sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’283 Patent. 

 
9 https://risnews.com/top-10-retailers-do-personalization-best. 
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30. Defendant directly infringed and continues to infringe the ’283 Patent, either 

literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, 

by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that 

satisfy each and every limitation of one or more claims of the ’283 Patent.  Such products include 

asset tracking systems. 

31. For example, Defendant directly infringed at least claim 20 of the ’283 Patent by 

making, offering to sell, selling, importing, and/or using in the United States inventory tracking 

and loss prevention system in its stores and throughout its supply chain, such as the Exacta WES 

supply chain solution and inventory management system.  

32. For example, upon information and belief, Best Buy’s inventory tracking and loss 

prevention system includes a method that  receives, via a network, first visual data from a first 

mobile unit; receiving, via the network, second visual data from a second mobile unit and visually 

recognizes a first object of observation associated with the first visual data.  The Defendant’s 

system visually recognizes a second object of observation associated with the second visual data 

and verifies that the first visual data was received from the first object of observation in response 

to the visually recognizing the first object of observation.  Defendant’s system further verifies that 

the second visual data was received from the second object of observation in response to the 

visually recognizing the second object of observation and transmits, via the network, the first 

visual data to the second mobile unit and  transmits, via the network, the second visual data to the 

first mobile unit, to facilitate visual communication between the first mobile unit and the second 

mobile unit. 

33. For example, upon information and belief, Best Buy’s inventory tracking and loss 

prevention system uses methods which employ automated order picking and robotic order picking 
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which uses visual recognition and image recognition technology and robotic systems with vision 

functionality within its supply chain and storage facilities, as exemplified below: 

10 

34. Defendant directly infringed one or more claims of the ’283, either literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, by making, using, offering to sell, selling and/or importing into the 

United States products or systems that include infringing technology.   

35. NorthStar has suffered damages as a result of Defendant’s infringement of the ’283 

Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

COUNT III 

(Infringement of the ’349 Patent) 

 

36. Paragraphs 1 through 20 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

37. NorthStar has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendant to make, use, offer 

for sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’349 Patent. 

38. Defendant infringed the ’349 Patent, either literally or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, using, offering to 

 
10 https://www.bastiansolutions.com/solutions/technology/industrial-robotics/goods-to-robot/.  
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sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each and every limitation 

of one or more claims of the ’349 Patent.  Such products include asset tracking systems. 

39. For example, Defendant directly infringed at least claim 1 of the ’349 Patent by 

making, offering to sell, selling, importing, and/or using in the United States inventory tracking 

and loss prevention system in its stores and throughout its supply chain, such as the Exacta WES 

supply chain solution and inventory management system.  

40. For example, upon information and belief, Best Buy’s inventory tracking and loss 

prevention system includes a method of monitoring an inventory of assets, each having a 

communication module that provides a facility having a first wireless communication system 

operable to communicate with each module, generates a first communication between the first 

system and each module, and based on the communication, establishes an inventory of assets in 

the facility.  The Defendant’s system further, based on the inventory, identifies a missing asset 

absent from the facility and generates a second communication via a second communication 

System operating outside of the facility. 

41. Defendant directly infringed one or more claims of the ’349, either literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, by making, using, offering to sell, selling and/or importing into the 

United States products or systems that include infringing technology.   

42. NorthStar has suffered damages as a result of Defendant’s infringement of the ’349 

Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury for all issues so triable. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 

WHEREFORE, NorthStar prays for relief against Defendant as follows: 
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a. Entry of judgment declaring that Defendant has infringed one or more claims of 

each of the Patents-in-Suit; 

b. An order pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283 permanently enjoining Defendant, its 

officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and those persons in active concert or 

participation with it, from further acts of infringement of one or more of the Patents-in-Suit;  

c. An order awarding damages sufficient to compensate NorthStar for Defendant’s 

infringement of the Patents-in-Suit, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty, together with 

interest and costs; 

d. Entry of judgment declaring that this case is exceptional and awarding NorthStar 

its costs and reasonable attorney fees under 35 U.S.C. § 285; and, 

e. Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

Dated:  May 10, 2022     Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ Vincent J. Rubino, III 

Alfred R. Fabricant 

NY Bar No. 2219392 

Email: ffabricant@fabricantllp.com 

Peter Lambrianakos 

NY Bar No. 2894392 

Email: plambrianakos@fabricantllp.com 

Vincent J. Rubino, III 

NY Bar No. 4557435 

Email: vrubino@fabricantllp.com 

FABRICANT LLP 

411 Theodore Fremd Ave., Suite 206 South 

Rye, NY 10580 

Telephone: (212) 257-5797 

Facsimile: (212) 257-5796  

 

John Andrew Rubino 

NY Bar No. 5020797 

Email: jarubino@rubinoip.com 

Michael Mondelli III 

NY Bar No. 5805114 

Email: mmondelli@rubinoip.com 
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RUBINO IP 

830 Morris Turnpike 

Short Hills, NJ, 07078 

Telephone: (973) 535-0920 

Facsimile (973) 535-0921 

 

 

Justin Kurt Truelove 

Texas Bar No. 24013653 

Email: kurt@truelovelawfirm.com 

TRUELOVE LAW FIRM, PLLC 

100 West Houston 

Marshall, Texas 75670 

Telephone: (903) 938-8321 

Facsimile: (903) 215-8510 

 

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF,  

NORTHSTAR SYSTEMS LLC 
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